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paragraph (34)(a), of Commandant 
Instruction M16475.lD, this rule is 
categorically excluded from further 
environmental documentation. The 
changes here are procedural and affect 
only the default treatment of ‘‘fail to 
respond’’ NOVs. A ‘‘Categorical 
Exclusion Determination’’ is available in 
the docket where indicated under 
ADDRESSES.

List of Subjects in 33 CFR Part 1 

Administrative practice and 
procedure, Authority delegations 
(Government agencies), Freedom of 
information, Penalties.

For the reasons discussed in the 
preamble, the Coast Guard amends 33 
CFR part 1 as follows:

PART 1—GENERAL PROVISIONS

Subpart 1.07—Enforcement; Civil and 
Criminal Penalty Proceedings 

1. The authority citation for subpart 
1.07 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 14 U.S.C. 633; Sec. 6079(d), 
Pub. L. 100–690, 102 Stat. 4181; 49 CFR 1.46.

2. In § 1.07–11, a new paragraph (b)(7) 
is added, paragraph (d) is revised, and 
paragraphs (e) and (f) are added, as 
follows:

§ 1.07–11 Notice of Violation.

* * * * *
(b) * * * 
(7) A statement that failure to either 

pay the proposed penalty on the Notice 
of Violation or decline the Notice of 
Violation and request a hearing within 
45 days will result in a finding of 
default and the Coast Guard will 
proceed with the civil penalty in the 
amount recommended on the Notice of 
Violation without processing the 
violation under the procedures 
described in 33 CFR 1.07–10(b).
* * * * *

(d) If a party declines the Notice of 
Violation within 45 days, the case file 
will be sent to the District Commander 
for processing under the procedures 
described in 33 CFR 1.07–10(b). 

(e) If a party pays the proposed 
penalty on the Notice of Violation 
within 45 days, a finding of proved will 
be entered into the case file. 

(f) If within 45 days of receipt a 
party— 

(1) Fails to pay the proposed penalty 
on the Notice of Violation; and 

(2) Fails to decline the Notice of 
Violation—the Coast Guard will enter a 
finding of default in the case file and 
proceed with the civil penalty in the 
amount recommended on the Notice of 
Violation without processing the 

violation under the procedures 
described in 33 CFR 1.07–10(b).

Dated: May 23, 2002. 
Jeffrey P. High, 
Acting Assistant Commandant for Marine 
Safety, Security and Environmental 
Protection.
[FR Doc. 02–13963 Filed 6–3–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 4910–15–P

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Coast Guard 

33 CFR Part 117 

[CGD08–02–013] 

Drawbridge Operating Regulation; 
Bonfouca Bayou, LA

AGENCY: Coast Guard, DOT.
ACTION: Notice of temporary deviation 
from regulations. 

SUMMARY: The Commander, Eighth 
Coast Guard District has issued a 
temporary deviation from the regulation 
in 33 CFR 117.433 governing the 
operation of the State Route 433 swing 
span drawbridge across Bonfouca 
Bayou, mile 7.0, at Slidell, St. Tammany 
Parish, Louisiana. This deviation allows 
the draw of the State Route 433 swing 
span drawbridge to remain closed to 
navigation from 8 a.m. until noon on 
June 12, 2002. This temporary deviation 
will allow for installation of new 
electrical parts for continued operation 
of the draw span of the bridge.
DATES: This deviation is effective from 
8 a.m. until noon on Wednesday, June 
12, 2002.
ADDRESSES: Unless otherwise indicated, 
documents referred to in this notice are 
available for inspection or copying at 
the office of the Eighth Coast Guard 
District, Bridge Administration Branch, 
Commander (obc), 501 Magazine Street, 
New Orleans, Louisiana, 70130–3396. 
The Bridge Administration Branch 
maintains the public docket for this 
temporary deviation.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Mr. 
David Frank, Bridge Administration 
Branch, at the address given above or 
telephone (504) 589–2965.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The SR 
433 swing span drawbridge across 
Bonfouca Bayou, mile 7.0, at Slidell, St. 
Tammany Parish, Louisiana, has a 
vertical clearance in the closed-to-
navigation position of 3.5 feet above 
mean high water and 6.7 feet above 
mean low water at the pivot pier. The 
vertical clearance at the rest pier is 8.2 
feet above mean high water and 11.4 
feet above mean low water in the 

closed-to-navigation position. The 
bridge provides unlimited vertical 
clearance in the open-to-navigation 
position. Navigation on the waterway 
consists of tugs with tows, fishing 
vessels, sailing vessels, and other 
recreational craft. 

Presently, the draw operates as 
follows: The draw need not open for 
passage of vessels from 7 a.m. to 8 a.m. 
and from 1:45 p.m. to 2:45 p.m., 
Monday through Friday except Federal 
Holidays. The draw need open only on 
the hour and half-hour from 6 a.m. to 7 
a.m. and from 3 p.m. to 6 p.m., Monday 
through Friday except federal holidays. 
The draw shall open on signal from 9 
p.m. to 5 a.m., if at least 4 hours notice 
is given to the Louisiana Department of 
Transportation and Development 
Security Service at (540) 375–0100. At 
all other times the draw shall open on 
signal. 

The Louisiana Department of 
Transportation and Development 
requested a temporary deviation for the 
operation of the drawbridge to 
accommodate maintenance work. The 
work involves installation of new 
electrical parts. This work is essential 
for continued operation of the draw 
span of the bridge. 

This deviation allows the draw of the 
State Route 433 swing span drawbridge 
to remain closed to navigation from 8 
a.m. until noon on Wednesday, June 12, 
2002.

Dated: May 24, 2002. 
D.F. Ryan, 
Captain. U.S.C.G., Commander, Eighth Coast 
Guard District, Acting.
[FR Doc. 02–13961 Filed 6–3–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 4910–15–U
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AGENCY: Coast Guard, DOT.
ACTION: Notice of temporary deviation 
from regulations. 

SUMMARY: The Commander, Eighth 
Coast Guard District has issued a 
temporary deviation from the regulation 
in 33 CFR 117 governing the operation 
of the CSX Transportation railroad 
swing span drawbridge across Three 
Mile Creek, mile 0.3, at Mobile, 
Alabama. This deviation allows the 
draw of the railroad swing span bridge 
to remain closed to navigation from 8 
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